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Situated in the center of Marion County, Kentucky is the historic Loretto Motherhouse. 
This tightly packed complex of buildings encompasses approximately sixteen acres of 
fertile land. The structures themselves reflect good basic design and solid construction, 
There ^re 23 in number and they include the following:

A. Knobs Haven, built in 1873, was used as a guest house until 1974, when it 
became a retreat center. It is a two-story, brick structure with segmental 
arch es over the bays.

B. Nerinckx House. Constructed in 1873 for use as a chaplains residence, this 
structure served as such until 1974. This two-story brick building is now a 
guest house. As with Knobs Haven, the brick is laid in common bond with seg­ 
mental arches over the bays.

C. The 1873 House is a residence for sisters since its remodelling in 1975. 
It originally served as a home for the men who worked at the Motherhouse. A 
two-story frame structure, four bays wide, this building is very simple with 
little detailing.

D. Badin House was erected for Father Badin in 1816, and is said to be the 
first brick house constructed in Marion County. It is presently a guest resi­ 
dence. It is of Flemish bond brick, one-story in height, and has jack arches 
over the bays.

E. Rhodes Hall was built between 1832-34 and served as Loretto Academy until 
1888. Later used as a museum, the building presently houses an art studio and 
gallery. This two-story, brick Federal style structure is seven bays wide and 
has parapet end chimneys. The brick pattern is Flemish bond and jack arches top 
the window openings. The fan lit entrance is covered by a one-story pedimented 
portico.

F. Stuart Hall is a prefabricated 1913 addition to Rhodes Hall, 
frame structure is presently a residence for the sisters.

This two-story

G. St. Joseph T s Infirmary was built in 1947-48 for the care of retired and sick 
Sisters of Loretto. The infirmary is brick, and three stories in height.

H. The Chapel of the Seven Dolors was constructed in 1863 after the previous 
chapel was destroyed by fire. An addition was built in 1898, and a wing 
attached in 1927. This gable-end structure is Gothic in style with traceried 
window openings and common bond brick. The projecting entrance way is flanked 
by short projecting pinnicles at the cornice. A similar cornice treatment was 
used on the rest of the structure.

I. The Novitate or Academy Building was begun in 1886, and completed two years 
later. This was Loretto Academy until 1918, when the school closed. It now 
serves as a residence for sisters and guests. The Academy Building is three 
stories in height and fourteen bays wide. It has a semi-projecting entrance 
tower with a mansard roof, and a semi-projecting bay at each end of the facade.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sisters of Loretto, founded in central Kentucky in 1812, was one of the first 
Catholic women's orders in the United States. Originally formed for the purpose of 
teaching local children, the order expanded into a world wide institution, with 
missions as far away as China and South America. Therefore the historic structures 
which compose the Loretto Motherhouse complex have a particular historical signi­ 
ficance in their association with this important Catholic order.

Many of Kentucky f s earliest settlers were Catholics, and could be counted among those 
who composed the settlement at Harrodsburg in 1775. Ten years later, twenty families 
from St. Mary's County, Maryland migrated to Kentucky and settled in the area of 
Pottingers Creek in Marion County. Later they were followed by others who established 
themselves around the Rolling Fork and Salt River (present day Marion County). This 
area soon became the most important Catholic community west of the Alleghenies. By 
1787 the number of Catholics was so large that Bishop John Carroll of Baltimore 
appointed the first pastor to Kentucky Reverend Father Whelen. In 1808, four 
American Sees (each the center of authority for a bishop) were created: Boston, 
New York, Phildelphia and Bardstown, Kentucky. Father Benedict Joseph Flaget was 
appointed Bishop of Bardstown.

In 1793 Bishop Carroll sent Reverend Stephen Bad in to Kentucky and he settled in 
Marion County near present-day Loretto. Pxeverend Badin received as assistant Reverend 
Charles Nerinckx, a native of Belgium, who was to remain in Kentucky for nineteen years. 
The founding of ten churches is attributed to him.

Father Nerinckx also saw the need for quality education for the girls in the area. 
Consequently when Mary Rhodes, Christian Stuart and Ann Haven requested his help in 
establishing a school, Father Nerinckx established rules to govern their organization.

Formed on April 25, 1812, the order became known as "Friends of Mary at the Foot of the 
Cross." The farm which they established was called "Little Loretto" after a shrine in 
Italy. Father Nerinckx stayed with the sisters of Loretto for twelves years and traveled 
twice to Europe seeking aid for them.

Around 1824 a difference of opinion over the rules of the sisters occurred between Father 
Nerinckx and other clergy members. In order to avoid conflict Father Nerinckx left for 
Missouri to assist another convent. He died a few weeks after his arrival. Not long 
after that the Sisters of Loretto moved to their present location at Nerinx, Kentucky. 
This complex became known as the Loretto Motherhouse.

From this modest beginning, Loretto expanded to open other convents and schools 
throughout the West and overseas. The first school to be opened by the sisters outside 
Kentucky was in Missouri in 1823. In 1847 a school for Osage Indians
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J. Father Nerinckx's Cabin was brought from Little Loretto in 1895. This 
single-pen log structure served as his home from 1812 to 1824.

K. The Chapel of Virtue and Science was constructed in 1885. This brick, 
gable-end structure is seven bays deep and three bays wide. It has a 
pedimented, semi-projecting entrance way and a fan-lit opening.

L.-M. These three one-story, brick structures were probably constructed for 
residences for the sisters. All were,built during the late 1800s, in a 
plain style with segmental arches over the bays.

0.,P. Presently used as storage units, these structures were probably built 
during the late 19th century.

Q. This 20th century frame cottage is a residence for some of the sisters. 
Rectangular in form, it is devoid of architectural detailing.

R. Similar in style to the other brick buildings on campus, this two- 
story, eight-bay, brick structure serves as a dormitory for the resident 
sisters. The brickwork is common bond with segmentally arched openings.

S.-V. These are all 20th century utilitarian structures which have no 
historical or architectural merit.

W. The maintenance building is a one-story, gable-end structure. It appears 
to have been constructed around the turn of the century.

The boundary for the Loretto Motherhouse Complex is drawn to include all of the 
historic structures, the cemtery, the recent buildings and land immediately surrounding 
the complex to incorporate an area important to the visual integrity of the site.

Non-contributing structures within the Loretto Motherhouse Complex. 

S. Trailer

T. Cinderblock garages 

U.& V. Pool House and Pool
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was established in southeast Kansas and in 1852 a school for Spanish children was 
begun in Santa Fe. Later the sisters were responsible for schools in Denver, Colorado 
and El Paso, Texas. As the parochial school system in the U.S. grew, Loretto 
responded by staffing many schools in the South and West. By 1920 Loretto sisters 
were teaching at many levels, including college. They opened two of the earliest 
Catholic Colleges for women: Webster in St. Louis (1916), and Loretto Heights in 
Denver (1918). In 1923 the sisters formed their first foreign mission in Han Yang, 
China. Eight years later, the need for missions spurred Loretto to found missions 
in La Paz, Bolivia, Tacna, Peru and Santiago, Chile.1

In 1970, the central government for the Order of the Sisters of Loretto was moved to 
Denver from Loretto. This was meant to facilitate a new emphasis on response to the 
needs of the church in the modern world. Although no longer an education institution, 
the Loretto Motherhouse still provides essential services to the community and to 
the church.

The buildings that compose the Loretto Motherhouse complex range in date from early 
19th to mid-20th century. The historic structures show a quality of craftsmanship 
which has been well-preserved over the years. The brickwork in most of the buildings 
is especially fine. The complex itself appears to have 
evolved in a well-planned way, still retaining its 19th century campus atmosphere.

Most of the missions and schools established by the Loretto Motherhouse are 
no longer extant.
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Beginning at the southeast corner of the Loretto cemetery, the boundary runs 
west approximately 300* and then turns northeast and runs approximately 400' 
to just behind Father Nerinckx's Cabin. The boundary turns northwest at that 
point and goes approximately 500* before turning north to run approximately 
200 1 , to a point behind the garage. The boundary continues northeast 
approximately 600* then turns southeast approximately 900* to a point just 
behind the 1873 house. The boundary line travels due south approximately 
100* before turning southwest for about 700 f . The closing line is due south 
and extends approx. 300' to stop at the southeast corner of the cemetery.


